
   

Mississippi Headwaters Board 
Meeting Agenda 

Cass County Board Room 
Walker, MN 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84052575445 
April 26, 2024 

 10:00 am 
 

 
 
10:00 AM 

• Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
 
10:05 AM Approve/Amend 
 

• Agenda  
• Consent Agenda – March ’24 Minutes & Expenses 

 
Correspondence 

• April Press Release 
• Pequot Lakes high school presentation 

 
Planning and Zoning (Actions) 
 

• H4a24- Gee Variance 
• CW4a24- Reiner Variance 
• M4a24- Burns Variance 

 
Action / Discussion Items: 
 

• Resolution 2024-02- Approve 
• RSDP grant- discussion 
• Review of Bylaws- discussion 
• Program Review- discussion 
• Executive Directors report-discussion 

 
Misc: Legislature Update (if any), County Updates 
 
Meeting Adjourned - Thank you 
     
Mtgs:  May 24, 2024 10:00 AM- MHB Monthly Meeting, Walker, MN  



 

 

Mississippi Headwaters Board 
March 22, 2024 

Cass County Board Room Walker, MN 
Optional interactive technology:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81054960046 

MEETING 
MINUTES 

 
Members present:  Ted Van Kempen (Hubbard), Craig Gaasvig (Beltrami), Bobby Kasper (Morrison), Steve 
Barrows (Crow Wing), Dean Newland (Clearwater), Michael Kearney (interactive Aitkin), and Tim Terrill 
(Executive Director). 
 
Video Interactive Reasons:  Commissioners attending interactively is due to scheduling differences. 
 
Others Present: Sharon Peterson (Morrison County), Bill Chamberlain (landowner) 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   
 
Chair Van Kempen asked if there were any additions to the agenda.  M/S (Barrows/Kasper) to approve of the 
agenda.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Chair Van Kempen asked for approval to the consent agenda.  Comm. Van Kempen asked to change the word 
“hire” to “create” under county updates; Comm. Gaasvig asked to change the name from Integrity to 
Contegrity; and it was noted to add the Commissioners that approved of the Hubbard Shoreland Ordinance.  
M/S (Gaasvig/Newland) to approve of the Consent agenda with those additions.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Correspondence 
 

1. February Press Release-  Tim provided the board with the press release that explained how leadership 
was elected to the 2024 Miss. Headwaters Board. 

2. WDIO Press Release-  Tim showed the board a press release from WDIO and told the Commissioners 
that he was on WDIO TV in Duluth.  The article was about the land exchange and partners working 
together to make that happen. 

 
Planning and Zoning 
 
M3a24- Bill Chamberlain Variance-  Planning & Zoning Specialist Sharon Peterson from Morrison County was 
there to present the variance.  The landowner is replacing his existing deck with the same dimensions but 
sifting it over three feet to the North.  The existing impervious surface is 26.1% where 25% is allowed.  
Discussion ensued and Comm. Gaasvig noted that it was an easy decision because the impervious surface is 
not being increased and the deck is being shifted.  M/S (Gaasvig/Kasper) to approve of the variance.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 



Action/Discussion: 
 

1. Board Picture-  The board chose to take the picture after the meeting.  
2. SFY ’25 Budget & Annual Work Plan-  Tim presented the budget to the board and explained how he 

came up with the numbers.  He also presented the Annual Plan.  Discussion ensued and Comm. 
Barrows attested to the budgeting process and meeting that took place, and commended Tim for 
allowing the board to understand the budget by showing the comments in the document.  He said this 
will help the board explain it to others and the legislature.  It was noted by Comm. Gaasvig that an 
initiative should be added to the annual plan that explains the MHB is working with local high schools.  
Comm. Barrows added that he mentioned to Tim about a study on the Miss. river itself that provides 
us with some type of measurable on improvement or decline.  Tim said there was a Large River Study 
done by the MPCA ten years ago, and they are repeating that study this year.  Comm. Barrows said that 
we should get this information on the website so people will know what we are accomplishing.  M/S 
(Barrows/Kasper) to approve of the Annual Work Plan and Budget with additions.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
Executive Directors Report 
 

1. Tim held phone conversation with Bill Heig, Jens Heig, and Tom Glass to develop an awareness strategy 
to Senator Klobuchar and Smith.  I drafted some themes and a strategy, and we worked on a letter to 
the Senators to make them aware of the progress we have made and asked how we should proceed 
further.  An email was sent out informing them of HR 1657, and requesting them to proceed with a 
companion bill. 

2. The MHB project idea draft was accepted by Regional Sustainable Development Program.  The next 
step is for me to write a full proposal and submit it by April 15th.  The proposal will request that 
University professors study the economic development impact on our Resourcetainment events. 

3. Tim attended NCCR meeting and discussed with partners the various conservation activities occurring 
throughout the region.  The MN Pollution Control Agency said that they are working on getting final 
approval for nutrient standards for shallow lakes.  This could impact Lake Irving in Beltrami County and 
possibly delist it off the impaired waters list. 
 

County & Legislative Updates 
 
Comm. Gaasvig said that the legislature is proposing a bill that will transfer state and federal land to the Red Lake 
Nation.  This has the county concerned about the property values of the private landowners which could restrict access.   
 
Comm. Barrows pointed out that the MHB Bylaws are out of date and he proposed that the MHB look into updating it 
either through committee or at the monthly meetings. He also said that the board could look at the Comprehensive Plan 
and also create a strategic plan as well.  Board members agreed that the Comprehensive Plan has a process all on its 
own and can be updated every ten years.  Tim said there were around five to six pages in the Bylaws.  The board agreed 
through consensus that the Bylaws should be sent out to each board member and they should review them over 
following monthly board meetings.  Comm. Barrows also stated that we should have our mission statement on our 
agenda and prominent on our website. 
 
M/S (Barrows/Newland) to adjourn.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 



_____________________________     ________________________________  
Ted Van Kempen, Chairman of the Board    Executive Director Tim Terrill    



YTD 
spending/rei
mbursement

Projected 
Budget

% of budget 
spent

Monthly Amount
93,163.68$   117,800.00$  79.09%

5,082.41$     8,000.00$      63.53%
126.00$         200.00$          63.00%

10,409.92$   11,000.00$    94.64%

5,686.88$     9,000.00$      63.19%

42.00$           42.00$            100.00%
10,500.00$   12,000.00$    87.50%

Total -$                               31,847.21$   40,242.00$    

Monthly Amount

9,007.39$                     83,098.99$   116,691.00$  71.21%

2,563.00$     2,563.00$      100.00%
250.00$                        2,250.00$     2,300.00$      97.83%

11.20$                           337.27$         1,000.00$      33.73%
105.86$                        2,309.30$     2,500.00$      92.37%
349.47$                        3,529.49$     3,500.00$      100.84%

14,658.07$   35,000.00$    41.88%

61.62$                           2,325.03$     2,500.00$      93.00%

400.00$         800.00$          50.00%
Total 9,785.54$                     111,471.15$ 166,854.00$  

Governor's DNR grant is always $124K every year
LSOHC grant is around $6K to $8K every year
*The total under revenue does not reflect the $124K because it is a non-competitive grant, and it doesn't always fall in the fiscal year.

Notes

Commissioner Mileage (62720)

Training & Registration Fees 
(63380)

Hotel/Meals/travel exp. (63340)

Office supplies/operations 
(64090)

CW financial

reimbursed by Gov. DNR grant
reimbursed by Gov. DNR grant 
reimbursed by Gov. DNR grantEmployee Mileage (63320)

MCIT Dividend (58300) MCIT refund

LSOHC grant (53290)

Enbridge program (58300)

telephone

March SFY'24 Budget Summary

8 county support

AIS reimbursement

Salaries/Benefits 
FICA/Med/PERA/LIFE/LTD/Hlth/
WC(61000)

MHB board Per Diem (62680)

reimbursed by Gov. DNR grant

reimbursed by Gov. DNR grant 

Governor’s DNR grant (53290)

MCIT insurance/work 
comp/liability (61500) reimbursed by Gov. DNR grant

Guidebook sales (58400) reimbursment for Guidebook sales
enbridge reimbursement

Revenues:
non competitive quarterly reimbursement
LSOHC reimbursement

County Support (52990)

Professional Services (62990)

Miscell. Other revenue (58300)

Expenses: Notes



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2024 03 TO 2024 03

Report generated: 04/12/2024 08:09
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      1

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE
74830    58300        Miscellaneous Other Revenue   
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                   -2,250.00          -2,250.00
                                                             PER 02                  -48,700.00         -50,950.00
 24/03    252 03/01/24  GNI 638699 Britny.McC 53164                                    -3,000.00        -53,950.00
      iNovah     AIS support 2024                                   
                                                                                       
 24/03    909 03/26/24  GNI 640893 Britny.McC 53437                                    -5,000.00        -58,950.00
      iNovah     Jackson AIS support                                
                                                                                       
 24/03    909 03/26/24  GNI 640892 Britny.McC 53437                                    -2,000.00        -60,950.00
      iNovah     Pine AIS aid                                       
                                                                                       
 24/03    909 03/26/24  GNI 640891 Britny.McC 53437                                    -8,822.00        -69,772.00
      iNovah     aitkin ais support                                 
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:               .00       CREDITS:         -69,772.00      NET:         -69,772.00
 
 
74830    61000        Salaries & Wages - Regular    
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                    5,976.55           5,976.55
                                                             PER 02                    6,394.92          12,371.47
 24/03    369 03/08/24  PRJ PR0308 1240308    1240308     1240                          3,107.81         15,479.28
      PAY030824  WARRANT=240308  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       
 24/03    811 03/22/24  PRJ PR0322 1240322    1240322     1240                          3,107.81         18,587.09
      PAY0322    WARRANT=240322  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:         18,587.09       CREDITS:                .00      NET:          18,587.09
 
 
74830    61200        Active Insurance              
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                    1,894.86           1,894.86
                                                             PER 02                    1,894.86           3,789.72
 24/03    369 03/08/24  PRJ PR0308 1240308    1240308     1240                            936.41          4,726.13
      PAY030824  WARRANT=240308  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       
 24/03    811 03/22/24  PRJ PR0322 1240322    1240322     1240                            959.07          5,685.20
      PAY0322    WARRANT=240322  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:          5,685.20       CREDITS:                .00      NET:           5,685.20
 
 



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2024 03 TO 2024 03

Report generated: 04/12/2024 08:09
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      2

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE
74830    61300        Employee Pension & FICA       
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                      865.81             865.81
                                                             PER 02                      929.18           1,794.99
 24/03    369 03/08/24  PRJ PR0308 1240308    1240308     1240                            451.01          2,246.00
      PAY030824  WARRANT=240308  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       
 24/03    811 03/22/24  PRJ PR0322 1240322    1240322     1240                            445.28          2,691.28
      PAY0322    WARRANT=240322  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:          2,691.28       CREDITS:                .00      NET:           2,691.28
 
 
74830    61500        Worker's Compensation         
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
 24/03    306 03/05/24  API 101939            212288                  2                 2,563.00          2,563.00
      W A030524  MCIT RENEWAL                   MN COUNTIES INTERGOV
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:          2,563.00       CREDITS:                .00      NET:           2,563.00
 
 
74830    62100        Telephone                     
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                       61.54              61.54
                                                             PER 02                       61.64             123.18
 24/03    598 03/19/24  API 006205            213278              37258                     6.62            129.80
      W C031924  COUNTY WIDE PHONE BILL         CONSOLIDATED TELECOM
                                                                                       
 24/03    811 03/22/24  PRJ PR0322 1240322    1240322     1240                             55.00            184.80
      PAY0322    WARRANT=240322  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:            184.80       CREDITS:                .00      NET:             184.80
 
 
74830    62680        Non-Employee Per Diems        
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                      250.00             250.00
                                                             PER 02                      250.00             500.00
 24/03    901 03/26/24  API 003257            213626              37350                    50.00            550.00
      W A032624  MHB MEETING & MILEAGE          GAASVIG, CRAIG      
                                                                                       
 24/03    901 03/26/24  API 006980            213636              37358                   116.58            666.58
      W A032624  MHB MILEAGE                    ROBERT F. KASPER    
                                                                                       
 24/03    901 03/26/24  API 002534            213637              37354                    50.00            716.58
      W A032624  MHB MEETING                    NEWLAND, DEAN       
                                                                                       



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2024 03 TO 2024 03

Report generated: 04/12/2024 08:09
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      3

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE
 24/03    901 03/26/24  API 006952            213638              37353                    50.00            766.58
      W A032624  MHB MEETING                    MICHAEL KEARNEY     
                                                                                       
 24/03    901 03/26/24  API 003356            213639              37351                    50.00            816.58
      W A032624  MHB MEETING AND MILEAGE        HUBBARD COUNTY TREAS
                                                                                       
 24/03   1908 03/26/24  APM 006980            213636              37358                  -116.58            700.00
      MODIFY     MHB MILEAGE                    ROBERT F. KASPER    
                                                                                       
 24/03   1909 03/26/24  APM 100532            213633            1954938                    50.00            750.00
      MODIFY     MHB MEETING                    MORRISON COUNTY AUDI
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:            866.58       CREDITS:            -116.58      NET:             750.00
 
 
74830    62720        Non-Employee Mileage          
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                      391.28             391.28
                                                             PER 02                      251.92             643.20
 24/03    901 03/26/24  API 003257            213626              37350                    68.34            711.54
      W A032624  MHB MEETING & MILEAGE          GAASVIG, CRAIG      
                                                                                       
 24/03    901 03/26/24  API 100532            213633            1954938                    50.00            761.54
      W A032624  MHB MEETING                    MORRISON COUNTY AUDI
                                                                                       
 24/03    901 03/26/24  API 003356            213639              37351                    37.52            799.06
      W A032624  MHB MEETING AND MILEAGE        HUBBARD COUNTY TREAS
                                                                                       
 24/03   1908 03/26/24  APM 006980            213636              37358                   116.58            915.64
      MODIFY     MHB MILEAGE                    ROBERT F. KASPER    
                                                                                       
 24/03   1909 03/26/24  APM 100532            213633            1954938                   -50.00            865.64
      MODIFY     MHB MEETING                    MORRISON COUNTY AUDI
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:            915.64       CREDITS:             -50.00      NET:             865.64
 
 
74830    62990        Prof. & Tech. Fee - Other     
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                   16,443.40          16,443.40
                                                             PER 02                      525.00          16,968.40
 24/03   1675 03/31/24  GEN                                                               525.00         17,493.40
      RECURRING  FINANCIAL SERVICE                                  
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:         17,493.40       CREDITS:                .00      NET:          17,493.40
 
 



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2024 03 TO 2024 03

Report generated: 04/12/2024 08:09
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      4

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE
74830    63320        Employee Mileage              
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                      479.54             479.54
                                                             PER 02                      367.16             846.70
 24/03   1618 03/28/24  GNI                                                               203.68          1,050.38
      WF OOP     Legacy Finance Committee                           
                 TIM TERRILL - testify before house legacy finance committee           
 24/03   1618 03/28/24  GNI                                                               102.51          1,152.89
      WF OOP     Visit Grand Rapids board mtg                       
                 TIM TERRILL - Visit Grand Rapids board meeting                        
 24/03   1618 03/28/24  GNI                                                                43.28          1,196.17
      WF OOP     MHB monthly board meeting                          
                 TIM TERRILL - MHB monthly board meeting                               

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:          1,196.17       CREDITS:                .00      NET:           1,196.17
 
 
74830    63340        Hotel & Meals Travel Expense  
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                       10.68              10.68
 24/03   1619 03/28/24  GNI                                                                11.20             21.88
      BREMPCARD  meal                                               
                 TIM TERRILL - meal - DAIRY QUEEN 11320                                

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:             21.88       CREDITS:                .00      NET:              21.88

          GRAND TOTAL --- DEBITS:         50,205.04       CREDITS:         -69,938.58      NET:         -19,733.54 
 
        30 Records printed
                                          ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Korie Wiggins **                                          



Clearwater  *  Hubbard  *  Beltrami  *  Cass  *   Itasca  *  Aitkin  *  Crow Wing  *  Morrison 

 
    
 
 
 
IMMEDIATE PRESS RELEASE 4/2/24 
Media Contact 
Tim Terrill 
218-824-1189 
timt@mississippiheadwaters.org 
www.mississippiheadwaters.org 
322 Laurel St. 
Brainerd, MN  56401 
 
Mississippi Headwaters Board Forms Budget Committee  
 
The MHB voted to form a budget committee to look at past expenses and revenue and plan a budget 
for the next fiscal year.  It was decided that the Chair and the Secretary/Treasurer would be on the 
committee.  The board though this would be helpful because it would provide Commissioner input on 
the budget and they could look for ways to be more efficient and save the taxpayer money.   
 
 
 
 

http://www.mississippiheadwaters.org/




 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

H4a24- Gee Variance 

CW4a24- Reiner Variance 

M4a24- Burns Variance 

 
 

 









































































Variance Application 5-V-24 by Thomas and Cathy Gee: 2023 Aerial Imagery 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Variance Application 5-V-24 by Thomas and Cathy Gee: 2023 Aerial Imagery 
 

 

 









Staff Report 
Hubbard County Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment 
Monday, March 25, 2024 Hearing/Meeting 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT: 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Variance Application 5-V-24 by Thomas and Cathy Gee: Part of Gov't Lot 4 and part of Gov't Lot 2, Section 
1, Township 145, Range 32, Farden Township on Wolf Lake, a recreational development lake. Parcel 
07.01.01200. Applicants are requesting a variance from Section 506 of the Shoreland Management Ordinance 
for a proposed guest cottage on a lot that doesn’t meet the required 150' minimum lot width at the ordinary high 
water mark. 
 
Enclosed Document(s): 

 5-V-24 application 
 2023 aerial imagery w/2’ elevation contours overlain 
 Interior photos of proposed guest cottage space rec’d 06/12/2023 

 
The applicants request a variance to have a guest cottage co-located in an existing garage accessory structure 
on this lot that does not meet the 150’ minimum lot width requirement at the OHW as it is approximately 84’ wide 
at the OHW. The lot is 104,205 sq. ft. and approximately 156’ wide at the 100’ OHW structure setback. The 
proposed guest cottage would be 660 sq. ft.  
 
The house on this lot was constructed by a 2000 variance that allowed it to be within the 10’ setback from the 
septic tank servicing it and the 20’ township road ROW setback to be waived. A condition said the lakeside deck 
could be no closer to the OHW than where it currently sat. There was an existing house on the lot at the time of 
this variance that had been damaged by a vehicle running off of the road and into the house. The township road 
used to run right behind (east) of the house. Sometime between 2001 and 2003, the road was moved to its 
current location. Historic aerial imagery on the County website shows the old road location if any on the Board 
are interested. 
 
The edge of the septic tank for the house is either touching the edge of the attached garage or partially beneath 
the garage. In 2023, a new pressure bed was installed for the SSTS servicing the house. This system is sized 
for three bedrooms. Also in 2023, an upgrade was done to the SSTS that services the garage in which the 
applicants are requesting to place the proposed guest cottage. This upgrade consisted of installing a 500 gallon 
pump tank and a pressure bed with the system sized for two bedrooms. 
 
In June of 2022, the department received a complaint that a short-term rental (STR) use was occurring on the 
property which led to the department sending the applicants a letter in July of 2022 informing them of the need 
to obtain a license if the property was being used this way. The applicants submitted a license application in July 
of 2022 that was incomplete. Another complaint was submitted in February of 2023 which led to the department 
sending the applicants another letter in March of 2023. The applicants obtained an STR license in August 2023.  
 
Also in 2023, staff became aware that the space proposed to be used as a guest cottage in this variance 
application had already been developed into guest cottage space. This led to staff communicating to the 
applicants that such a use could not occur without a variance due to the lot not meeting the 150’ minimum lot 
width at the OHW. This led to the applicants removing items specified by staff from the guest cottage space so 
that it wouldn’t constitute a guest cottage (see enclosed email and photos provided by the applicants.) 
 
The lot is uniquely shaped due to an unclassified creek that runs along the southwest side of the lot. The lot is 
104,205 sq. ft. per the County’s GIS. The lot meets the 150’ minimum lot width requirement at the 100’ OHW 
setback. The east (rear) half of the lot averages 360’ in width. As the lot area is two and a half times the required 



Staff Report 
Hubbard County Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment 
Monday, March 25, 2024 Hearing/Meeting 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

40,000 sq. ft. lot area required to have a guest cottage, the only deficiency is the lot width at the OHW which is 
roughly 84’, and most of the lot width exceeds the 150’ minimum requirement, staff is supportive of the request. If 
approved, because the property is in the Mississippi River corridor, certification of approval will be required from 
the Mississippi Headwaters Board. 
 
Below are the findings of fact questions for your consideration: 
 
1. Is the variance in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official controls?  

           Yes ( X )  No (  ) 
Why or why not? The lot is 104,205 sq. ft. in size when 40,000 sq. ft. is required in order to have a guest 
cottage. The lot meets the 150’ minimum lot width requirement at the 100’ OHW structure setback and the 
east 60% of the lot averages 360’ in width. The creek that runs alongside the southwest boundaries of the 
lot is the reason why the lot isn’t able to meet the 150’ minimum width requirement at the OHW. The extra 
width on the rest of the lot and the extra lot area more than offset the lack of width at the OHW. Thus, 
allowing a guest cottage to be located on this lot is in harmony with the ordinance’s intent behind the guest 
cottage minimum lot size criteria. 

2.   Is the property owner proposing to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official 
control? 

              Yes ( X )  No (   ) 
Why or why not? The lot meets and exceeds the minimum lot area and width requirements for having a 
guest cottage aside from the sole deficiency of not having 150’ of lot width at the OHW due to the unique 
presence of a creek that flows out of Wolf Lake along the property’s southwest boundaries. The east 60% 
of the lot averages 360’ in width and the lot is two and a half times the required 40,000 sq. ft. minimum 
needed to have a guest cottage.  

3.  Is the need for a variance due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the current or 
prior property owners?          

            Yes ( X )  No (  ) 
 Why or why not? The lot lacks 150’ of shoreline due to a creek that runs along its southwest boundaries. 

The lot also abuts the north boundary of the government lot in which it is located which explains why when 
the lot was created, additional lot width was not available by extending the lot to the north into the adjacent 
government lot as the adjacent government lot was likely in separate ownership. 

4.  Will the issuance of the variance maintain the essential character of the locality? 
             Yes ( X )  No (  ) 

Why or why not? The locality consists of mostly seasonal residential homes on lots that are substandard in 
size. This lot is atypical for the area in terms of its size exceeding the 40,000 sq. ft. minimum lot size by 
150%. The detached garage in which the guest cottage would be co-located already exists. Allowing a 
guest cottage use within the garage structure will not harm the locality’s largely seasonal use residential 
character.   

5. Does the stated practical difficulty involve more than just economic considerations?       
           Yes ( X )  No (  ) 



Staff Report 
Hubbard County Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment 
Monday, March 25, 2024 Hearing/Meeting 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Why or why not? Economics are not cited in the application as a practical difficulty. The practical difficulty 
of not having 150’ of lot width at the OHW is caused by the unique shoreline width on the lot due to the 
creek that runs from the south edge of the lot’s shoreline along the lot’s southwest boundary. 

 



  

 Environmental Services 
 

 301 Court Avenue, Park Rapids, MN 56470 
  Phone: 218.732.3890 

www.co.hubbard.mn.us/departments/environmental_services/index.php 
 

 

Eric Buitenwerf, Env. Services Director  Bryan Haugen, Asst. Env. Services Director  Staci Lee, Admin. Asst. 
Env. Specialists: Aaron Anderson, Demey DeJong, Kal Larson  GIS Supervisor: Jack Bovee  GIS Specialist: Edward Schoon 

 
Hubbard County is an equal opportunity employer 

 

March 26, 2024 
 
Thomas and Cathy Gee 
32620 Wolf Lake Road 
Cass Lake, MN 56633 
 
Re: Hubbard County Board of Adjustment decision for Variance Application 5-V-24 
 
Dear Mr. and Mrs. Gee, 
 
The Hubbard County Board of Adjustment (BOA) met on Monday, March 25, 2024 to review and consider the 
following variance application: 
 
Variance Application 5-V-24 by Thomas and Cathy Gee: Part of Gov't Lot 4 and part of Gov't Lot 2, Section 1, 
Township 145, Range 32, Farden Township on Wolf Lake, a recreational development lake. Parcel 
07.01.01200. Applicants are requesting an after-the-fact variance from Section 506 of the Shoreland Management 
Ordinance for a proposed guest cottage on a lot that doesn’t meet the required 150' minimum lot width at the 
ordinary high water mark. 
 
The official decision of the Hubbard County Board of Adjustment is as follows: 
 

Kovacovich made a motion to approve the variance application as presented with the condition that the 
alternate SSTS drainfield sites be identified and preserved for both the primary dwelling unit and the guest 
cottage before the after-the-fact land use permit for the guest cottage can be issued. 

 
Johnson seconded the motion that passed 4 – 0. 

 
This is in accordance with Section 1103 of the Hubbard County Shoreland Management Ordinance and the findings 
of fact on file with the Environmental Services Department. 
 
In order for this variance to be valid, it must next be certified by the Mississippi Headwaters Board (MHB) because 
your property is located in the MHB Comprehensive Plan’s jurisdictional area. I plan to present the BOA’s decision 
on the application to the MHB at its April 2024 meeting. The MHB Executive Director will send you written 
notification of the MHB’s decision. 
 
If the MHB certifies your variance, you may then apply for the necessary after-the-fact permit for the guest cottage 
once the variance condition is satisfied. 
 
Please contact our department at (218) 732-3890 with any questions. 
 
Most sincerely, 
 
  
 
Eric Buitenwerf 
Environmental Services Director 
 



March 25, 2024 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Hearing/Meeting 
Minutes 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

HUBBARD COUNTY  
 
Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes  
 
6:00 p.m. on Monday, March 25, 2024 
 
Chair Veronica Andres opened the meeting with the following additional members present: Tim 
Johnson, Mike Kovacovich, and Larry Bumgardner. Also present were Environmental Services 
Director Eric Buitenwerf and ex-officio Planning Commission member and County Board Vice-Chair 
Steve Keranen. 
 
Andres started the meeting by reading the procedure by which the meeting of the Planning 
Commission/Board of Adjustment will be conducted to the audience. 
 

Board of Adjustment: 
 
New Business:  
 
Variance Application 5-V-24 by Thomas and Cathy Gee: Part of Gov't Lot 4 and part of Gov't Lot 2, 
Section 1, Township 145, Range 32, Farden Township on Wolf Lake, a recreational development lake. 
Parcel 07.01.01200. Applicants are requesting a variance from Section 506 of the Shoreland 
Management Ordinance for a proposed guest cottage on a lot that doesn’t meet the required 150' 
minimum lot width at the ordinary high water mark. 
 
Andres stated we do not have any applicants available, so I will ask the members again if we want to 
proceed with the application as we are allowed, or if we want to table it for the applicant to provide 
information. 
 
Johnson replied I would be in favor of proceeding. 
 
The Board agreed. 
 
Andres opened for public comment. 
 
No public comment was given. 
 
Andres closed public comment. 
 
Johnson questioned after our discovery at the lot viewal that this is an after-the-fact application now, 
does staff maintain the same recommendation as the original staff report? 
 
Buitenwerf replied yes, in spite of the landowner's behavior. 
 
Andres stated just for the record I would like to state that the original variance application was 
requesting a 660 sq. ft. guest cottage in an area of the detached garage. During lot views, it was 



March 25, 2024 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Hearing/Meeting 
Minutes 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

discovered that the variance application is now an after-the-fact variance request as the guest cottage 
referenced in the application was currently occupied and in use.  
 
Buitenwerf added the applicants did pay the additional after-the-fact fee that was required today. 
 
Johnson asked by paying the after-the-fact fee, it was an admittance to the violation? 
 
Buitenwerf replied that's how I take it. 
 
Andres added it does appear that the applicants have obtained a short-term rental license in August 
of 2023. At this time, it's only for the house. If this gets approved, are they allowed to have the guest 
cottage as an STR also? 
 
Buitenwerf explained if it meets duplex lot size criteria they can. This does not meet that. 
 
Andres clarified so they can only have one. They cannot do both. 
 
Buitenwerf agreed. 
 
Andres questioned are the applicants aware of that? 
 
Buitenwerf replied that I couldn't tell you. The property is supposedly up for sale. They've been saying 
that they were going to sell it since last year, so that could affect how you look at it. The other 
consideration would be future septic space. Because of different things that the owners have done, 
they've used up a lot of their available areas. They do have some space left, but it's going to be 
probably where all those trees are toward the east portion of the property. 
 
Andres added because of the property being in the Mississippi Headwaters Corridor, when they 
obtained the short-term rental license, did you have to notify the Mississippi Headwaters Board as 
well? 
 
Buitenwerf explained the license doesn't just because it is a staff action that doesn't involve a Board. 
 
Andres continued the guest cottage still has to get a double stamp if we approve? 
 
Buitenwerf stated it needs their certification, but their comprehensive plan doesn't speak to guest 
cottages. It's kind of a hoop you have to jump through. 
 
Kovacovich added I'm leaning towards approving, but with a condition that plans be submitted for 
alternate septic system drainfields for both of the systems, and with the understanding that this 
particular guest cottage cannot be used as a rental. 
 
Buitenwerf said with the current house and all the septic things that were going on last year, they 
ended up getting a short-term rental license for the occupancy that the house system can support, but 
they had wanted to work on putting in a larger system so they could bump up the occupancy in the 
house. That hasn't happened due to a variety of things with the applicant and their septic designer. 



March 25, 2024 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Hearing/Meeting 
Minutes 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
Andres asked is the septic system that's currently operating there a pressure bed or is it drainfield? 
 
Johnson answered that's a pressure bed. 
 
Andres continued when someone comes in with a pressure bed and wants to expand to increase 
occupancy, how do they expand on a pressure bed? 
 
Johnson explained you can make it wider. It looks like it is 12’ wide. 
 
Buitenwerf clarified this one is 12’ x 22’. 
 
Johnson stated you can make them up to 25’. You just add on square footage. 
 
Buitenwerf added that's the system for the guest house. 
 
Johnson asked if this property had the correct width at the shoreline, would they be allowed to put 
that guest cottage inside that garage? 
 
Buitenwerf agreed. 
 
Kovacovich added they still couldn't utilize it as part of the rental unit. How many bedrooms are they 
allowed for the rental? 
 
Buitenwerf replied three bedrooms, six occupants maximum. That one's also a pressure bed. 
 
Andres asked when it comes to alternate drainfields then, it would most likely be a pressure bed 
according to the soils? 
 
Johnson agreed, and right next to them generally. 
 
Andres continued they already had an old drainfield there? 
 
Buitenwerf explained part of the reason they couldn't expand the size of the system for the house is 
because the tanks for the house are partly under the garage and under their sidewalk. 
 
Andres asked wouldn't it be sufficient if they wanted to increase, to fill those up and close them off? 
 
Buitenwerf responded that was suggested by my staff. 
 
Andres asked Kovacovich could you repeat the possible conditions that you had? 
 
Kovacovich stated one was just making sure that alternate drainfield sites be identified and preserved 
on the property for both systems. 
 
Andres asked did you have something about the STR? 



March 25, 2024 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Hearing/Meeting 
Minutes 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
Kovacovich added that's just for clarification that only one rental unit is allowed per this property. They 
could choose to make the guest cottage the rental if they wanted, but then the house couldn't be. 
 
Andres clarified if they chose to do that, would they have to come in and seek a different license? 
 
Buitenwerf replied the license is currently for the main house. 
 
Andres said they would have to switch it. 
 
Andres continued it sounds as though we're all in agreeance that it's a possibility to retain that, even 
though it was a little misleading, with a couple conditions. The lot is uniquely shaped due to the 
unclassified creek that runs along the southwest side of the lot. It is also 104,000 sq. ft. per the 
County's GIS. The lot does meet the 150’ minimum lot width requirement at the 100’ ordinary high 
water mark setback. It does meet a lot of criteria. If it is approved, then we still need to get Mississippi 
Headwaters Board certification. 
 

Kovacovich made a motion to approve the variance application as presented with the condition 
that the alternate SSTS drainfield sites be identified and preserved for both the primary 
dwelling unit and the guest cottage before the after-the-fact land use permit for the guest 
cottage can be issued. 

 
Johnson seconded the motion that passed 4 – 0. 

 
The Board adopted the staff report Findings of Fact. 
 
Findings of Fact 
 
1. Is the variance in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official controls?  

           Yes ( X )  No (  ) 
Why or why not? The lot is 104,205 sq. ft. in size when 40,000 sq. ft. is required in order to have a 
guest cottage. The lot meets the 150’ minimum lot width requirement at the 100’ OHW structure 
setback and the east 60% of the lot averages 360’ in width. The creek that runs alongside the 
southwest boundaries of the lot is the reason why the lot isn’t able to meet the 150’ minimum 
width requirement at the OHW. The extra width on the rest of the lot and the extra lot area more 
than offset the lack of width at the OHW. Thus, allowing a guest cottage to be located on this lot is 
in harmony with the ordinance’s intent behind the guest cottage minimum lot size criteria. 

2.   Is the property owner proposing to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control? 

              Yes ( X )  No (   ) 
Why or why not? The lot meets and exceeds the minimum lot area and width requirements for 
having a guest cottage aside from the sole deficiency of not having 150’ of lot width at the OHW 
due to the unique presence of a creek that flows out of Wolf Lake along the property’s southwest 



March 25, 2024 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Hearing/Meeting 
Minutes 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

boundaries. The east 60% of the lot averages 360’ in width and the lot is two and a half times the 
required 40,000 sq. ft. minimum needed to have a guest cottage.  

3.  Is the need for a variance due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the 
current or prior property owners?          

            Yes ( X )  No (  ) 
 Why or why not? The lot lacks 150’ of shoreline due to a creek that runs along its southwest 

boundaries. The lot also abuts the north boundary of the government lot in which it is located which 
explains why when the lot was created, additional lot width was not available by extending the lot 
to the north into the adjacent government lot as the adjacent government lot was likely in separate 
ownership. 

4.  Will the issuance of the variance maintain the essential character of the locality? 
             Yes ( X )  No (  ) 

Why or why not? The locality consists of mostly seasonal residential homes on lots that are 
substandard in size. This lot is atypical for the area in terms of its size exceeding the 40,000 sq. 
ft. minimum lot size by 150%. The detached garage in which the guest cottage would be co-
located already exists. Allowing a guest cottage use within the garage structure will not harm the 
locality’s largely seasonal use residential character.   

5. Does the stated practical difficulty involve more than just economic considerations?      
           Yes ( X )  No (  ) 

Why or why not? Economics are not cited in the application as a practical difficulty. The practical 
difficulty of not having 150’ of lot width at the OHW is caused by the unique shoreline width on the 
lot due to the creek that runs from the south edge of the lot’s shoreline along the lot’s southwest 
boundary. 

 







 
      Crow Wing County – Planning Commission 

                                     Summary of Record 
         March 21, 2024 

 
 

 
Property Owner: Reiner, Leigh G Trust & Reiner, Anita K 
 
Parcel Number: 99120536 
   
Physical Address: 12389 Executive Acres Road, Brainerd, MN 56401 
 
Location: Located on South 1020 feet of Gov Lot 1 together with an easement; Unorganized/1st Assessment, Crow Wing 
County, Minnesota 
 
Request: 
Variance for: 

1. An OHW setback of 130 feet to proposed garage addition, where 150 feet is required. 
2. An OHW setback of 122 feet to proposed addition to an existing dwelling, where 150 feet is required. 

 
To Construct: 

• A 1,080 square foot garage addition, and a 900 square foot addition to an existing dwelling, per 
Certificate of Survey received 01/17/2024. 

 
Current Zoning: Shoreland District – Mississippi River 
 
Adjacent Land Use/Zoning: 
North:  Shoreland District with RR-10 
South:  Mississippi River & Waterfront Commercial District 
East:  Mississippi River 
West: Shoreland District 
 
Existing Impervious Coverage: 2.8% 
Proposed Impervious Coverage: 3.3% 
 
Chronology of events: 
• January 08, 2024 – Development Review Team Meeting 
• February 14, 2024 – Application submitted 
• February 28, 2024 – On-site notice published in local newspapers 
• March 06, 2024 - PC/BOA Meeting published in local newspapers  
• March 07, 2024 – Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment On-site visit 
• March 08, 2024 – Notices mailed 
• March 21, 2024 – Board of Adjustment Meeting – Decision to approve the Variance request with no conditions 

 
Packet Information: 

• Public Hearing Notice 
• Staff Report 
• Certificate of Survey 
• Aerial, LUMA, FEMA & MHB setback Views 
• On-Site Photos 
• Variance Application 
• Variance Findings of Fact Questions with County staff recommendations 

 
Agencies Notified and Responses Received: 
MHB: Comment received 03/08/2024 
MNDNR: No comment received as of 03/21/2024 
SWCD: No comment received as of 03/21/2024 
Citizen Correspondence: No comment received as of 03/21/2024 

 
 

March 21, 2024 



 
FINDINGS OF FACT 

SUPPORTING / DENYING A VARIANCE REQUEST 
A Variance may be granted by the Board of Adjustment when it is found that strict enforcement of the Land Use Ordinance 
will result in a “practical difficulty” according to Minnesota Statute 394.27 Subdivision 7.  The Board of Adjustment should 
weigh each of the following questions to determine if the applicant has established that there are “practical difficulties” in 
complying with regulations and standards set forth in the Land Use Ordinance. 
 
 
1.   Is the Variance request in harmony with the purposes and intent of the Ordinance? 
      Yes     X 
      Why? 

•    The Ordinance allows for the expansion of non-conforming structures through the variance process 
outlined in Article 8 of the County Land Use Ordinance. 

•    The Mississippi River curves around this property for which any additions to the structures would 
require a variance. 

•    The requested 122-foot setback to the proposed addition to the existing dwelling and the 130-foot 
setback to the addition to the garage are minimal reductions from the required 150-foot setback to the 
Mississippi River. 

•    The structure was built in 1974 before MHB requirements were more restrictive. Back in 1974, this 
structure met the ordinance requirements at that time. 

 
2.    Is the Variance consistent with the Comprehensive Plan? 
      Yes    X 

Why? 
• Encourage residential development that provides housing options for different socioeconomic groups – 

particularly the aging population – while protecting the characteristics that people value, a sense of 
community, as well as a plan to provide all citizens reasonable access to a diversity of recreational and 
open space opportunities (pg. 42). 

 
3.   Is the property owner proposing to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the Land Use 
Ordinance? 
      Yes    X 
      Why? 

• The 900 square foot dwelling addition is a minimal addition the side of an existing legal non-conforming 
structure does not meet the required setbacks. 

•    The 1,080 square foot garage addition is a minimal addition the side of an existing legal non-
conforming structure does not meet the required setbacks. 

 
4.   Is the need for a Variance due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the property owner? 
     Yes    X 
     Why? 

• The topography of the land restricts the suitable area for the proposed additions. 
•    The Mississippi River curves around this property for which any additions to the structures would 

require a variance. 
 

5.   Will the issuance of a Variance maintain the essential character of the locality? 
       Yes    X 
       Why? 

• The 900 square foot addition is a minimal addition the side of an existing legal non-conforming 
structure does not meet the required setbacks. 

•    The 1,080 square foot garage addition is a minimal addition the side of an existing legal non-
conforming structure does not meet the required setbacks. 

•    There are no close neighbors in the vicinity of this request. 
 

6.   Does the need for a Variance involve more than economic considerations? 
      Yes    X 
      Why? 

•    The proposed additions are to the side of an existing legal non-conforming structure. 
•    There is a minimal increase in impervious coverage from 2.8% to 3.3%. 



 
•    The Mississippi River curves around this property for which any additions to the structures would 

require a variance. 
 

7.  What is the Township recommendation? N/A 
      
8.  Other Pertinent Findings: None 
 
 
March 21, 2024, Action: 
Decision:  Motion by Yliniemi; supported by Maske to APPROVE the Variance requests for:   

1. An OHW setback of 130 feet to proposed garage addition, where 150 feet is required. 
2. An OHW setback of 122 feet to proposed addition to an existing dwelling, where 150 feet is required. 

 
To Construct: 

• A 1,080 square foot garage addition, and a 900 square foot addition to an existing dwelling, per 
Certificate of Survey received 01/17/2024. 

 
Approved Conditions: None 
 
Roll call vote: Auge, Best, Maske, Yliniemi, Hales - all voting "Aye"; Unanimous, Motion carried. 
 
Parcel Number: 99120536 
  
Per findings of fact discussed 03/21/2024, on-site conducted 03/07/2024, and as shown on the Certificate of 
Survey received 01/17/2024 at the Land Services Department; Located on South 1020 feet of Gov Lot 1 together 
with an easement; Unorganized/1st Assessment, Crow Wing County, Minnesota 
 
 
 
Findings:  As listed above 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 04-18-2024                    Signature:       
          Chairman 
 
 



March 21, 2024, Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment  
For Informational Purposes 

6 
 

Reiner, Leigh G Trust & Reiner, Anita K 
99120536 – PID 

  
Leigh Reiner, property owner was present in-person. Pence read the variance requests as well as the property 
information into the record citing Land Use Ordinance and staff comments. Reviewed the proposals, building envelope 
and the setbacks on the survey. Reviewed how the Mississippi Headwaters Board will be making final decision on this 
request by either certifying or not certifying the proposals. Reviewed the on-site visit photos. Comment received from 
MHB. No additional comments received on this request. 
 
Hales asked the applicant if he had any additional comments. Reiner reviewed why the proposals are in the location they 
are and what these proposals will be. Structure was built in 1974 and by the previous owners. No close neighbors except 
family members. 
 
Let the record show there is no one from the public in the courtroom and no public attending virtually. No public testimony 
held. 
 
Maske then read the onsite report into the record. Hales asked if there were any additional comments or discussion. None 
presented. 
 
Hales asked Board Members if they have reviewed the preliminary Findings of Fact answers for a variance. All 
acknowledge they have. Hales asked if there were any changes or additions to the preliminary Findings of Fact answers. 
Maske added finding on question number one. Pence added a finding to question number one for “yes” preliminary 
findings as well. All agreed with the Findings of Fact as modified. 
 
March 21, 2024, Action: 
Decision:  Motion by Yliniemi; supported by Maske to APPROVE the Variance requests for:   

1. An OHW setback of 130 feet to proposed garage addition, where 150 feet is required. 
2. An OHW setback of 122 feet to proposed addition to an existing dwelling, where 150 feet is required. 

 
To Construct: 

 A 1,080 square foot garage addition, and a 900 square foot addition to an existing dwelling, per 
Certificate of Survey received 01/17/2024. 

 
Approved Conditions: None 
 
Roll call vote: Auge, Best, Maske, Yliniemi, Hales - all voting "Aye"; Unanimous, Motion carried. 
 
Parcel Number: 99120536 
  
Per findings of fact discussed 03/21/2024, on-site conducted 03/07/2024, and as shown on the Certificate of 
Survey received 01/17/2024 at the Land Services Department; Located on South 1020 feet of Gov Lot 1 together 
with an easement; Unorganized/1st Assessment, Crow Wing County, Minnesota 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



paul
New Stamp

Nicole.Hausmann
Received



 

NLH – 03/08/2024 

 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION/BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

March 21, 2024, 5:00 P.M. 
Historic Court House, 3rd Floor, County Board Room  

326 Laurel Street, Brainerd MN 56401 
(218) 824-1010, Fax (218) 824-1126, Web: www.crowwing.gov 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION 
 

Property Owner/Applicant: Reiner, Leigh G Trust & Reiner, Anita K 
 
Parcel Number: 99120536 
  
Physical Address: 12389 Executive Acres Road, Brainerd, MN 56401 
 
Location: Located on South 1020 feet of Gov Lot 1 together with an easement; Unorganized/1st Assessment, Crow Wing 
County, Minnesota 
 
Request:   
Variance for an OHW setback to proposed garage addition. 

Variance for an OHW setback to proposed addition to an existing dwelling. 

 
Notification:  Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Chapter 394, and the Crow Wing County Land Use Ordinance, you are hereby 
notified of a public hearing before the Crow Wing County Planning Commission / Board of Adjustment.  Property owners have 
been notified according to MN State Statute 394.26 & published in the Brainerd Dispatch. Please share this notice with any of 
your neighbors who may not have been notified by mail. 
 
Information:  The final information packet will be available for review after March 14, 2024, at  
HTTP://CROWWINGCOUNTYMN.IQM2.COM . 
 

Please submit comments in writing, including your name and mailing address, to (landservices@crowwing.gov).   
Any and all comments received will be presented to Board Members prior to the start of the Meeting.   
Comments received between 5:00PM March 13, 2024, and 3:00PM March 21, 2024, will be emailed to the Board members and 
also printed for them for review prior to the March 21, 2024, 5:00PM meeting. Comments that are received prior to 5:00PM 
March 13, 2024, will be included in the Public online information packet that will be posted on the Crow Wing County Website.  
 
Written comments regarding the following application will be accepted via mail or email any time prior to the March 21, 2024, 
Hearing. Any persons wishing to provide in-person Public Testimony will be allowed to do so at this Hearing. This Hearing will be 
conducted virtually via Microsoft Teams, to allow any virtual Public Testimony in addition to in-person Testimony. Comments 
may be submitted to Land Services, 322 Laurel St, Suite 15, Brainerd, MN 56401 or landservices@crowwing.gov 
 

Persons wishing to attend virtually and/or provide public testimony via phone or virtually at the meeting may join via Microsoft  

Teams with the following link: https://bit.ly/PCBOA 
 
or call +1 218-302-1725 and enter the Conference ID: 797 394 749# 
 
 
Please contact Land Services with any questions:  218-824-1010 

http://www.crowwing.gov/
http://crowwingcountymn.iqm2.com/
mailto:landservices@crowwing.gov
mailto:landservices@crowwing.gov
https://bit.ly/PCBOA


 

NLH/03.22.2024                    
                    

NOTICE OF DECISION  
 
**This letter is NOTICE to inform you of the results from the Public Hearing held on March 21, 2024, 
regarding the following application: 
  
Property Owner: Reiner, Leigh G Trust & Reiner, Anita K 
 
Parcel Number: 99120536 
   
Physical Address: 12389 Executive Acres Road, Brainerd, MN 56401 
 
Location: Located on South 1020 feet of Gov Lot 1 together with an easement; Unorganized/1st Assessment, 
Crow Wing County, Minnesota 

 
 

The following request(s) were approved by the Board of Adjustment at the meeting held March 21, 
2024: 

 
Variance for: 

1. An OHW setback of 130 feet to proposed garage addition, where 150 feet is required. 
2. An OHW setback of 122 feet to proposed addition to an existing dwelling, where 150 feet is 

required. 
 
To Construct: 

• A 1,080 square foot garage addition, and a 900 square foot addition to an existing dwelling, 
per Certificate of Survey received 01/17/2024. 

 
 
Approved Conditions: None 
 
 

 
This request will now be placed on the Agenda for the Mississippi Headwaters Board, where they will 
certify this request or deny. 
 
 
 
Please call Crow Wing County Land Services (218)-824-1010 with any questions you may have. 



1

Nicole Hausmann

From: Nicole Hausmann
Sent: Thursday, March 7, 2024 4:09 PM
To: Adam Maleski; Tim Terrill; Frie, Jacob (DNR); Doug Houge; Jon Lubke; Steve Barrows; 

Paul Koering; Rosemary Franzen
Cc: Alex Gorman; Chris Pence
Subject: NOTICE - PCBOA PUBLIC HEARING 03-21-2024 Variance - Reiner
Attachments: COS received 01.17.2024.pdf; VAR App - Reiner.pdf; NOTICE-PCBOA- VAR - Reiner - 

03.21.2024.pdf

Property Owner: Reiner, Leigh G Trust & Reiner, Anita K 
 
Parcel Number: 99120536 
                                                                                                   
Physical Address: 12389 ExecuƟve Acres Road, Brainerd, MN 56401 
 
LocaƟon: Located on South 1020 feet of Gov Lot 1 together with an easement; Unorganized/1st Assessment, Crow Wing 
County, Minnesota 
 
Requests: 
Variance for: 

1. An OHW setback of 130 feet to proposed garage addition, where 150 feet is required. 
2. An OHW setback of 122 feet to proposed addition to an existing dwelling, where 150 feet is required. 

This is a NOTICE informing you that an application has been made before the Planning Commission/Board of 
Adjustment at a date in the near future. This Notice is being sent in order to give adequate time to review the 
application and make recommendations in a timely manner prior to the County’s Public Hearing Process. 

Attached to this NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING is a copy of the NOTICE, the survey, and the application.  These files can 
also be viewed in person at the Land Services Office.  

The Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment members conducted the On-Site Visits on March 07, 2024 for this 
property. 

Please review the attached material and submit your written comments and/or concerns, whether pro or con, to the 
Land Services Department at least one (1) week prior to the Hearing. 

The Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment values the input and takes the concerns into consideration when making 
their decisions. 

Sincerely, 
Nicole 
 
 
Nicole Hausmann   
Planning Coordinator 
Office:ௗ(218) 824-1010  
Direct: (218) 454-7481  
www.crowwing.gov   
  



NLH 02/15/2024 

 
                        Staff Report 

 
 

 
Property Owner: Reiner, Leigh G Trust & Reiner, Anita K 
 
Parcel Number: 99120536 
   
Physical Address: 12389 Executive Acres Road, Brainerd, MN 56401 
 
Location: Located on South 1020 feet of Gov Lot 1 together with an easement; Unorganized/1st Assessment, Crow Wing 
County, Minnesota 
 
Application Submitted:  02/14/2024 
Action Deadline:  04/14/2024 
60 Day Waiver: N/A 
Wetland Delineation: 09/26/2023 
Septic Design: 04/25/2023 - approved 
 
Current Zoning: Shoreland District – Mississippi River 
 
Adjacent Land Use/Zoning: 
North:  Shoreland District with RR-10 
South:  Mississippi River & Waterfront Commercial District 
East:  Mississippi River 
West: Shoreland District 
 
Request: 
Variance for: 

1. An OHW setback of 130 feet to proposed garage addition, where 150 feet is required. 
2. An OHW setback of 122 feet to proposed addition to an existing dwelling, where 150 feet is required. 

 
To Construct: 

• A 1,080 square foot garage addition, and a 900 square foot addition to an existing dwelling, per 
Certificate of Survey received 01/17/2024. 

  
 

Existing Impervious Coverage: 2.8% 
Proposed Impervious Coverage: 3.3% 
 
 
03-07-2024 On-Site Comments: Maske, Auge, Hausmann, Gorman 

• The proposed additions are not getting closer to the Mississippi River. 
• The Mississippi River curves around the property. 
• There are no close neighbors so cannot determine if there are similar structures with similar setbacks in the 

area. 
• There is a natural ice ridge along the shoreline. 
• The property slopes down towards the Mississippi River. 

 
01/08/2024 Development Review Team Meeting Notes: 

• Reviewed the proposal 
o Wants to add on to existing dwelling to the south 
o Wants to add a garage to the north 
o Wants to add a porch 
o Three bedrooms 
o Updating the bedrooms in the dwelling 
o Basement review 
o None would meet setbacks from the Mississippi River 

• Discussed the parcels that are in the neighborhood which are all owned by him and his family 



NLH 02/15/2024 

• FEMA review 
• Easement to property 
• Septic discussion 

o Needs to be replaced 
o Need a septic design for the application or a winter window 

• Reviewed the permit history 
• Certificate of survey is on file but needs to be updated 
• Reviewed the process of Mississippi Headwaters Board (MHB) 
• Discussed permits that are required 
• Wetland and septic design on file 

o Need to be on the survey 
• Reviewed when meetings are held and deadlines 
• Nicole discussed next steps 

Parcel #99120536  12.4 Acres  Zoning: Shoreland & RR-10; Mississippi River 
 
This parcel is not platted. 
 
This Parcel is ☐ Abstract ☐ Torrens – Recording fees will be: $46.00 
 
Permit History:  

• 10/22/1981 – Permit request to level two ice ridge humps which consists of the removal of tree stumps, 
brush, weeds and thistles along with dirt (along the lakeshore) 

• 11/12/1981 – Public Hearing to level two ice ridge humps which consists of the removal of tree stumps, 
brush, weeds and thistles along with dirt (along the lakeshore) 

• 08/13/1984 – Building permit for the construction of a 24x48 pole barn 
• 06/09/1992 – Building permit to construct a 10x26 deck, and 3x17 walkway with steps 
• 08/30/2005 – Building permit for the construction of a 39x54 pole barn (no living quarters) 
• 07/27/2006 – Building permit to construct a 16x24 addition to the east side of existing 24x42 garage (no 

living quarters) 
• 02/03/2023 – ATF permit for the construction of a 2400 square foot accessory structure with no living 

quarters 
 
Agencies Notified and Responses Received: 
MHB: Comment received 03/08/2024 
MNDNR: No comment received as of 03/20/2024 
SWCD: No comment received as of 03/20/2024 
Citizen Correspondence: No comment received as of 03/20/2024 
 
Potential Conditions: 

1. Implement an erosion and sediment control plan utilizing best management practices (BMP’s) prior to 
construction and dirt moving activities. Plan must be approved by the County. The BMP’s must remain in 
place until all disturbed soils are stabilized. 

 
Request: 
Variance for: 

1. An OHW setback of 130 feet to proposed garage addition, where 150 feet is required. 
2. An OHW setback of 122 feet to proposed addition to an existing dwelling, where 150 feet is required. 

 
To Construct: 

• A 1,080 square foot garage addition, and a 900 square foot addition to an existing dwelling, per 
Certificate of Survey received 01/17/2024. 

 
Per findings of fact discussed 03/21/2024, on-site conducted 03/07/2024, and as shown on the Certificate of 
Survey received 01/17/2024 at the Land Services Department; Located on South 1020 feet of Gov Lot 1 together 
with an easement; Unorganized/1st Assessment, Crow Wing County, Minnesota 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 



 



DK INVESTMENTS LLC
1107 6TH ST S
BRAINERD, MN 56401

REINER, LEIGH G TRUST &
12389 EXECUTIVE ACRES RD
BRAINERD MN 56401,

SCHUETY, KAREN K
12046 EXECUTIVE ACRES RD
BRAINERD MN 56401

PREGROCKI, JOSEPH & JAYNE FA
12383 EXECUTIVE ACRES RD
BRAINERD MN 56401,

RUGGED RIVER REAL ESTATE LLC
12241 STALLMAN RD
BRAINERD, MN 56401

Reiner

SWCD
322 Laurel St. Suite 22
Brainerd, MN 56401

Mississippi Headwaters Board
Tim Terrill
322 Laurel St.
Brainerd, MN 56401

MN DNR - Jake Frie
1601 Minnesota Dr.
Brainerd, MN 56401

All 5 commissioners - email











•































•

•



•

•



•



•



•





 
 
 
 

Board of Adjustment Findings 
(PID 22.0501.000) 

 
 

Applicant:  Kelly Burns 
 
Variance Request:    Encroach on setback from the river and dwelling with a septic system 
 
Date of Hearing: April 2, 2024 
 
The property is in Section 36 of Pike Creek Township, on the Mississippi River. The property is a non-
conforming single lot (less than five acres and 330 feet wide). The property is approximately 213 feet 
wide and 22,569 square feet.  

 
A home, built in 1961, currently exists on the property.  The septic system serving the home failed 
inspection and needs to be replaced. The septic designer can design a full treating system (tank with a 
drainfield), however both the tank and drainfield will not meet setback from the river and the drainfield 
and would also encroach on the setback from the dwelling.  
 
The required setback from the river for septic systems is 125 feet.  The proposed tanks would be 50 feet 
from the river, and the drainfield would be 70 feet. All of which is within the shore impact zone. The 
required setback from dwellings with a drainfield is 20 feet; the drainfield is proposed to be 15 feet from 
the dwelling.  
 
The Mississippi Headwaters Board (MHB) was established in 1980 and implemented a plan that has 
zoning jurisdiction within the Mississippi River corridor in 1981. The respective counties are 
responsible for administering the requirements of the plan. If this variance is approved, the MHB must 
certify the variance decision. 
 
The applicant attended a DRT meeting. 

 
Applicable Comprehensive Land Use Plan Goals:  
 
Natural Resources and Open Spaces 
Goal C2: Preserve natural resources identified as critical and sensitive including wildlife habitats, 
wetlands, forest lands, etc., within Morrison County. 

 
Shoreland Development 
Goal D1:  Work to ensure that development occurring within the County’s watersheds is done in a 
thoughtful and deliberate manner so as to balance environmental, social and economic goals to the 
greatest extent possible. 

 
Applicable Morrison County Comprehensive Water Plan Goals and Objectives: 
 
Surface Water Goal: To protect, enhance and maintain the quality of all surface waters in Morrison 
County (lakes, rivers, streams and wetlands) 
Objective B: Ensure that land use decisions for shoreland development take environmental impacts and 
climate change into consideration 
 
Land Use and Development Goal: To ensure that land use decisions are compatible with natural 
resource protection 



 
 
Objective B: Ensure that land use decisions for shoreland development and plat development take 
environmental impacts into consideration 
Objective D: Reduce the loss of natural habitat and enhance natural habitat communities when possible 

 
Three members of the Board of Adjustment viewed the property prior to the hearing. 
 
A plat map, aerial photographs, figures and site photographs were presented to the board. 
 
94 notices were mailed; one comment in favor of the request was received at the hearing. 

   
Three members of the Board of Adjustment were present at the hearing. 

 
The Board of Adjustment discussed the following at the public hearing: 

• The replacement mound drainfield was designed to blend into the hillside so it would not 
be so noticeable 

• There is a non-treating system in place now 
• Review of mound drainfield design and function 
• Lots along this stretch of the river do not have a building envelope  
• Great River Road was widened and that reduced the lot size further 

 
The following factors for consideration of a practical difficulty were: 

1. Is the request in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Morrison 
County Land Use Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan.  

2. Is the applicant proposing to use the property in a reasonable manner not 
permitted by the Land Use Ordinance.  

3. Will the issuance of the variance maintain the essential character of the locality.  
4. Is the alleged practical difficulty due to circumstances unique to the property.  
5. Is the need for the variance created by actions other than the landowner or prior 

landowners.  
6. Does the alleged practical difficulty involve more than just economic 

considerations 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Conclusion 
 
1. The Morrison County Board of Adjustment found the request is in harmony with the intent of 

the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Ordinance.  No legal building envelope is available 
on this property. The current system is failing and this upgrade is needed for protection of the 
river and drinking water.  (3) yes (0) no 
 

 
2. The Board of Adjustment found the applicant is proposing to use the property in a reasonable 

manner not permitted by the Land Use Ordinance.  Installation of a compliant septic system 
is reasonable. (3) yes (0) no 

 
 
3. The Board of Adjustment found the issuance of the variance will maintain the essential 

character of the locality.  The placement of the system blends in the landscape and will not be 
noticed by river users.  (3) yes (0) no 

 
 
4. The Board of Adjustment found the alleged practical difficulty is due to circumstances 

unique to the property.  This property offers no compliant building envelope. This is an 
established, enduring home with a failing septic system that must be upgraded. The lot was 
developed before any land use controls and the road has been widened over the years.    
(3) yes (0) no 

 
 

5. The Board of Adjustment found the need for the variance is created by actions other than the 
landowner or prior landowners. The house was built prior to land use controls and the road 
has been widened which further reduced the lot size.  (3) yes (0) no 

 
6. The Board of Adjustment found the alleged practical difficulty does involve more than just 

economic considerations. The applicant is proposing to install a full-treating system that will 
serve the dwelling for many years to come. This is not a cost-saving measure. (3) yes (0) no 

 
 
Based on the findings and the criteria as stated in Minnesota Statutes 394.27, a motion was made by 
Marvin Trettel and seconded by Clint Kathrein to approve the variance request to install a septic system 
with tanks 50 feet from the river, and the drainfield 70 feet from the river and 15 feet from the dwelling.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________ 
Chair       Date 
Morrison County Board of Adjustment 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Action/Discussion 
Resolution 2024-02- Approve 

RSDP grant- discussion 
Review of Bylaws- discussion 
Program Review- discussion 

Executive Directors report-discussion 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  



 
 

RESOLUTION 
MISSISSIPPI HEADWATERS BOARD 

 
  

Whereas, the Mississippi Headwaters Board (MHB) does not have formal resolution in place for the policy 
and procedures of the MHB office, 
 
Whereas, the MHB in the past has followed the policies and procedures of the county that the MHB office 
resides in. 
 
Now, therefore, Be it resolved, that the MHB will formally adopt the policies and procedures in the 
county that they office in. 
 
 
This resolution was adopted by a unanimous vote, Ayes:    Nays:    of the Mississippi Headwaters Board on 
April 26th, 2024 and will be made of record in accordance with the Minutes of same 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 
I, Ted VanKempen, Chair of the Mississippi Headwaters 
Board (MHB), do hereby certify that I have compared the 
foregoing with the original resolution filed in the MHB 
office on the 26th of April A.D. 2024, and the same is a 
true and correct copy of the whole thereof. 
 
WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL 
At Walker, Minnesota, this 26th day of April, A.D. 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________ 
Ted Van Kempen- Chair 



Below is a summary of your responses Download PDF

We thank you for your time spent taking this survey. 
Your response has been recorded.

Proposal development check list
Before you complete this proposal, make sure you have:

Met with the Regional Executive Director to discuss your proposal development
and next steps
Reviewed Project Partnering Criteria
Reviewed Regional Focus Area Priorities
Reviewed Full Proposal Form.pdf
Completed a budget

Applicant information

First Name Tim

Last Name

https://extension.umn.edu/regional-partnerships/submit-idea-rsdp#project-partnering-criteria-808811
https://extension.umn.edu/regional-partnerships/submit-idea-rsdp#regional-service-areas-and-priorities-808813
https://umn.qualtrics.com/CP/File.php?F=F_0Op5M0jvDUg2LxI


Region (select all that apply)

Which of RSDP's focus area(s) best match your idea?  Please click and drag to
indicate your project's primary focus area as well as any other focus areas your
project addresses. Only one focus area is needed.

Last Name Terrill

Organization (if
applicable): Mississippi Headwaters Board

Address (street, city, state, zip): 322 Laurel St

Email: timt@mississippiheadwaters.org

Phone: 2188388563

Community/ies where project would take place: Aitkin, Grand Rapids,

Central The Central RSDP serves Becker, Benton, Cass, Crow Wing, Hubbard, Kanabec, Mille Lacs,
Morrison, Otter Tail, Stearns, Todd and Wadena counties and the White Earth Nation, Leech Lake Band
of Ojibwe and Mille Lacs Band of Ojibwe sovereign Native nations.

Northeast The Northeast RSDP serves Aitkin, Carlton, Cook, Itasca, Koochiching, Lake, Pine and
St. Louis counties and the Bois Forte Band of Chippewa, Fond du Lac Bands of Lake Superior
Chippewa and Grand Portage Bands of Lake Superior Chippewa sovereign Native nations.

Northwest The Northwest RSDP serves Beltrami, Clay, Clearwater, Kittson, Lake of the Woods,
Mahnomen, Marshall, Norman, Pennington, Polk, Red Lake, Roseau and Wilkin counties and the Red
Lake Nation and White Earth Nation.

Southeast The Southeast RSDP serves Blue Earth, Faribault, Dodge, Freeborn, Goodhue, Houston,
LeSueur, Mower, Nicollet, Olmsted, Fillmore, Rice, Steele, Wabasha, Waseca and Winona counties and
the sovereign Native nation of Prairie Island Indian Community.

Southwest The Southwest RSDP serves Big Stone, Brown, Chippewa, Cottonwood, Douglas, Grant,
Jackson, Kandiyohi, Lac qui Parle, Lincoln, Lyon, Martin, McLeod, Meeker, Murray, Nobles, Pipestone,
Pope, Redwood, Sibley, Renville, Rock, Stevens, Swift, Traverse, Watonwan and Yellow Medicine
counties and the Upper Sioux and Lower Sioux sovereign Native nations.

Items Primary
focus areaAgriculture & food

systems

Clean
Resilient1

https://extension.umn.edu/regional-partnerships/central
https://extension.umn.edu/regional-partnerships/northeast-rsdp
https://extension.umn.edu/regional-partnerships/northwest
https://extension.umn.edu/regional-partnerships/southeast
https://extension.umn.edu/regional-partnerships/southwest


 

Project activities and goals. Describe the specific goals of your project and
the activities you will do to accomplish them. For each activity, include the
month(s) it is expected to take place. [Project Proposal Goal 1 Example.pdf .]

Additional
areas

addressed

Clean
energy

Resilient
communities

1

Natural
resources

1

Project
Title: Resourcetainment Economic Development project

Project Summary. In two or three sentences, briefly
summarize your project and what you hope to achieve.
This is how your project will be shared and described to
others.

The project will hold resourcetainment events where
people will paddle down the Mississippi river and enjoy
a social hour afterwards. Surveys will be developed by
UMN extension staff and completed by participants to
help develop a report that will inform the reader how
natural resource amenities can bring about economic
development in an area.

In two or three sentences, describe how your project will
impact the environmental, social and economic
sustainability of the region. If this project is part of a
larger effort, please describe.

The project will inform the reader in a report on how
natural resources can revitalize small, rural
communities through natural resource events and use.
This project is part of a larger effort to develop a visitor
profile and economic impact of what type of people
come and what benefit they receive in coming to a
recreational event, and using what economic impact
the Mississippi river has to produce direct and indirect
economic impact.



month(s) it is expected to take place. [Project Proposal Goal 1 Example.pdf .]

Goal 1:

 

Goal 2:

 

Do you have more goals to add?

Develop survey to inquire participants about direct and indirect economic impact as well as a visitor
profile.
Characters remaining: 139

Activities Month(s)  

  

 Develop survey July 2024  

 Pass out surveys at events June 2025  

 Determine from surveys a visitor profile to determine what demographic attends these events and indirect and
direct economic impact to the rural community. July 2025  

 analyze and produce report based off information gathered from surveys September
2025

 

Present this Project at the MHB biennial conference and potential Water Resources Conference

Activities Month(s)  

  

 Present at MHB biennial conference before 70 elected officials and staff October 2025  

 If accepted, present at Water Resources Conference October 2025  

  

  

https://umn.qualtrics.com/CP/File.php?F=F_5i0bemJqpJiHJJk


Who will benefit from the project, and how will they benefit?

Projects from, led by or that include meaningful participation of historically
underrepresented communities, which includes but is not limited to Native
communities, people of color, immigrants, people with low incomes, LGBTQ+,
people with disabilities, women and geographically isolated communities, are
welcomed and encouraged. If applicable, please describe how this relates to your
project.

What known community partners are or might be involved in this project?  This
includes nonprofit organizations, governmental entities, businesses, individuals and
other community groups. Also indicate whether each partner is a committed
partner (i.e., partner is on board and could be asked to provide a letter of support if
requested) or a likely partner (i.e., partner is aware of the project but does not yet
have a formal role.)

Yes

No

The report will be useful to elected officials and their staff to demonstrate how the rural community can
economically benefit from recreational natural resource events. The report will also show how people
attending the event will benefit by determining why they attended and their willingness to move to other
places where natural resource amenities exist. This report will encourage elected officials to hold events
and invest more capital into natural resource infrastructure in their community.

This project reaches out to people women and geographically isolated communities. A large number of
people attending these events are women. There have been very little people of color attending these
events, but we have had Native Americans attend our events in the past.

Add another partner

First and last name (if
known) Organization Describe project

contributions/role. Partner status  

   

Partner 1 Wendie Bright Aitkin County volunteer Committed  



What specific University of Minnesota partners are or might be involved in this
project, if known? Please include any role you are asking your RSDP regional
executive director to play. Also indicate whether each partner is a committed
partner (i.e., partner is on board and could be asked to provide a letter of support if
requested) or a likely partner (i.e., partner is aware of the project but does not yet
have a formal role.)

Budget: Please provide as much information as you can about the anticipated
budget for this project. Please include personnel, supplies and any other expenses
in your estimate. Use this link to access our Google sheets Budget Spreadsheet
Template. You will need to click the blue button "Make a copy". If Google is not
accessible to you, use this link to access our Excel Budget Spreadsheet Template. A
pdf version is available if Google or Excel are not accessible.

Wendie Bright Aitkin County volunteer

Partner
2 Tim Terrill Miss. Headwaters Board Project coordination Committed  

Partner
3 5 members Chamber of Commerce Event Planning Committed  

Partner
4 Kathleen Ryan Aitkin County VOLUNTEER Committed  

Partner
5 Mark Jeffers Aitkin County economic

development Volunteer Committed  

First and last name (if
known) Organization Describe project

contributions/role. Partner status  

   

Add another partner

Name UMN
Department Describe project contribution/role. Partner Status  

   

UMN partner 1 John
Bennett UMN develop survey and create economic development criteria for

report
Committed  

UMN partner
2 Brigid Tuck UMN Analyze economic impact from survey Committed  

UMN partner
3 Xinyi Qian UMN Analyze visitor profile and demographics from survey Committed  

UMN partner
4  

UMN partner
5  

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1PYwfmiMN3FXWXllbHXCgo3IbOQljMjKS35GaBFZlDYE/copy
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1wJcQbgg81_MR9FPGYeHeFIOAnmCSoImI/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1wjLdSKFTw0MwXvZ04E6RBO-rSltuWUCD/view?usp=sharing


Budget: Please attach your final budget spreadsheet here.

Based on the budget you prepared using our spreadsheet template,
what is the dollar amount of support you are requesting from RSDP?

Does your project involve a University of Minnesota student?

You are about to submit your proposal. Please review your responses to confirm
your proposal is complete.

RSDP proposal budget.xlsx

11 KB

application/vnd.openxmlformats-
officedocument.spreadsheetml.sheet

Dollar Amount

Year 1 (July 1, 2024 -
June 30, 2025):
REQUIRED

$7,050.00

Year 2 (July 1, 2025 -
June 30, 2026): if
needed

Year 3 (July 1, 2026 -
June 30, 2027): if
needed

Yes

No



Powered by Qualtrics A

Protected by reCAPTCHA: Privacy A & Terms A

your proposal is complete.

https://www.qualtrics.com/powered-by-qualtrics/?utm_source=internal%252Binitiatives&utm_medium=survey%252Bpowered%252Bby%252Bqualtrics&utm_content=umn&utm_survey_id=SV_ablFC4LBX1OSama
https://policies.google.com/privacy?hl=en
https://policies.google.com/terms?hl=en


Completed (enter 
name): Tim Terrill

Description of expense (Start 
with personnel costs, then travel 
and supplies, and any other 
costs.)

Funding source (Indicate RSDP or the 
name of the other entity funding that 
budget item.)

Is this 
funding 
source 
confirmed or 
pending? 
(Select one)

Is this item in-kind services 
or cash? (Select one) $ Amount

Shuttle Drivers- Transport from 
parking to launch site - 3 drivers 
for 5 hours Aitkin County River Trails Committee Confirmed In-kind $375.00  p  
registration, planning, launch site 
support, river exit support. 20 
workers for 5 hours Aitkin County River Trails Committee Confirmed In-kind $2,500.00
Entertainment at Tasting Site - 
provide atmosphere - 3 
Performers split into shifts RSDP Pending Cash $800.00
City Required Licensing RSDP Pending Cash $100.00
Porta Potty Rental RSDP Pending Cash $300.00
Advertising to Support the event RSDP Pending Cash $250.00

Kayak Rental Support for those 
that do not have their own kayaks RSDP Pending Cash $600.00
T-shirts for participants with logo 
to support the event - 125 tshirts 
at $20 RSDP Pending Cash $2,500.00
Shuttle Vehicle and Gas - 3 
vehicles with Trailers used Aitkin County River Trails Committee Confirmed In-kind $1,500.00
Brigid Tuck, Xinyi Qian, and John RSDP Confirmed Cash $1,500.00
Tim Terrill RSDP Confirmed Cash $1,000.00

BUDGET: Please provide as much information as you can about the anticipated budget for this project. Please include personnel, 
supplies, and any other expenses in your estimate. It may be helpful to list any funds requested from RSDP in rows next to each other 
because you will be asked to tally those separately.

Please use this as a budget worksheet while you are preparing your RSDP project proposal. Please share this spreadsheet with your 
regional RSDP executive director using the green share button above in the right corner. At the time you submit your project 
proposal, regional RSDP staff will download a copy of this budget spreadsheet and include it with your proposal materials. Please type 
your name in column F when your budget is complete.



$7,050.00

$11,425.00

TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED FROM RSDP (Only include budget items requested from RSDP.)

OVERALL TOTAL (Total budget including all in-kind and cash contributions.)



 

 
 
 
As Amended at MHB meetings 
3/19/93, 12/16/94, 3/17/95, 2/21/97, 2/16/01, 6/18/04, 3/18/05, 12/15/06, 2/25/19 
 
 

      BY-LAWS 
Mississippi Headwaters Board 

Land Services Bldg. – Crow Wing County 
Brainerd, MN 56401 

 
 
 
 
Article I - PURPOSE 
 
1. The purpose of the Mississippi Headwaters Board is to formulate plans for the area under its 

jurisdiction; to protect the Upper Mississippi River from uncontrolled and unplanned 
development through the preparation, adoption and implementation of a comprehensive 
management plan for the river and adjacent lands.  This management plan will provide for the 
adoption of strong local zoning ordinances, monitoring of water quality of the river, recreational 
use of the river and adjacent public lands, donation or purchase of critical lands in the public 
interest, and management of public lands along the River. 

 
2. The form of organization is a joint powers board, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 471.59.  

Members are counties of Clearwater, Beltrami, Hubbard, Cass, Itasca, Aitkin, Crow Wing and 
Morrison. 

 
 
Article II - MEMBERSHIP 
 
1. The membership of the Mississippi Headwaters Board shall be composed of one county 

commissioner, designated by the county board, from each member county. 
 
2. The chair shall serve a term of office of one year.   
 
3. Members will be appointed for two-year terms.  Members may be reappointed by the governing 

board of the county. 
 
4. If at any time the designated member is unable to attend the regularly scheduled meeting of the 

Mississippi Headwaters Board, he or she may designate an alternate from among the other 
members of his or her county board of commissioners.  The designated alternate will have the 
same privileges and responsibilities as any commissioner appointed to represent that county on the 
Mississippi Headwaters Board.  

 

Commented [TT1]: Add Mississippi 



Mississippi Headwaters Board By-Laws  
Dec. 15th, 2006 
Page 2 
 

 
 
 
As Amended at MHB meetings 
3/19/93, 12/16/94, 3/17/95, 2/21/97, 2/16/01, 6/18/04, 3/18/05, 12/15/06, 2/25/19 
 
 

 
Article III - OFFICERS 
 
1. The officers of the board shall consist of a chair, vice chair, and a secretary-treasurer.  
 
2. The  Board will select a Chair once a year and will serve a one year term.  An existing board 
member will be selected the following year to serve as Chair provided that they have served at least one 
year on the Board.  A board member can serve as Chair for multiple terms.   
 
3. The office of Vice Chair shall be selected by the MHB Board and will serve a one year term.  An 
existing board member will be selected the following year to serve as Vice Chair provided that they have 
served at least one year on the Board.  A board member can serve as Vice Chair for multiple terms.   
 
4. The office of Secretary-Treasurer shall be selected by the MHB Board and serve a one year 
 term.  An existing board member will be selected the following year to serve as Secretary-Treasurer 
 provided that they have served at least one year on the Board.  A board member can serve as 
 Secretary-Treasurer for multiple terms. 
 
6. The Mississippi Headwaters Board shall request the county to replace any member who 
misses two consecutive meetings without notice.  
 
7. The majority of the Board is five members. 
 
 
Article IV - COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD  
 
1. The Mississippi Headwaters Board shall assign members to a budget, personnel and legislative  
 committees at the January meeting. 
 
2. The budget committee shall report on the budget for the next year at the May meeting. 
 
3. The personnel committee shall review staff performance and recommend salary levels at the  
 December meeting. 
 
4. The legislative committee shall make proposals to the Minnesota Legislature and other policy  
 bodies.  
   
5. The Mississippi Headwaters Board shall assign members to other committees that are 
 appropriate to fulfilling its goals and objectives. 
 

Commented [TT2]: Maybe spell out duties 

Commented [TT3]: Maybe delete number 3 and modify #4 to 
say . 



Mississippi Headwaters Board By-Laws  
Dec. 15th, 2006 
Page 3 
 

 
 
 
As Amended at MHB meetings 
3/19/93, 12/16/94, 3/17/95, 2/21/97, 2/16/01, 6/18/04, 3/18/05, 12/15/06, 2/25/19 
 
 

 
Article V - ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
1. The Mississippi Headwaters Board shall appoint an Advisory Committee to routinely advise on  
 issues of policy and administration as related to the Board's purpose and Mission Statement  
 including, but not limited to, land use and management, water quality, and 
 stewardship/education. 
 
2. The Advisory Committee will make a regular report to the Mississippi Headwaters Board.  
 
3. Membership of the Advisory Committee shall consist of the following representatives: one  

individual from each of the eight member counties, to be appointed by the county board. That 
representative may come from one of the following areas: tourism, conservation, recreation, 
historic, utilities, timber and wood products, and agricultural interests in the headwaters area. 
The chair of the Technical Committee or designee shall also serve on the Advisory Committee.  
 

4. Townships and municipalities which have officially adopted the MHB minimum standards  
may appoint one representative to the Advisory Committee.  

 
5. Terms of membership for the Advisory Committee shall be one year. Members may be 

reappointed to consecutive terms, not to exceed four terms. 
 
6. The members of the Advisory Committee shall choose a chair and a vice chair, or co-chairs, to 

serve a one year term. 
 
7. A member of the Mississippi Headwaters Board will be assigned by the board to meet with the 

Advisory Committee as an ex-officio member.  
 
8. The Advisory Committee operates both as a committee and through subcommittees focusing on 

three topics: Land Use, Water Quality, and Stewardship/Education.  To increase effectiveness, 
subcommittees will be formed to address specific topics or project areas including: Land Use 
Regulation, Land Management (forest practices, agriculture, private lands), Recreational Systems 
Planning, River Watch, Heritage Awards, and Land Conservation. 

 
9. Subcommittees and ad hoc committees may utilize people who are not members of the Advisory 

Committee.  A listing of resource people will be maintained from which the Advisory Committee 
may seek out individuals to assist with efforts, provide information or insights, or provide advice 
on committee activities. 

 
 

Commented [TT4]: Make sure this is accurate 

Commented [TT5]: Make it more transparent on website. 



Mississippi Headwaters Board By-Laws  
Dec. 15th, 2006 
Page 4 
 

 
 
 
As Amended at MHB meetings 
3/19/93, 12/16/94, 3/17/95, 2/21/97, 2/16/01, 6/18/04, 3/18/05, 12/15/06, 2/25/19 
 
 

Article  VI – TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 
 
1.  Purpose:      

 The Mississippi Headwaters Board Technical Committee shall be established to advise the 
Board on issues related to planning and zoning activities within the Mississippi River 
Headwaters Corridor and Comprehensive Plan; and to review subdivisions, plats, 
conditional uses, and variances within the Corridor as necessary. 

 
2. Membership:   

 a.    Membership of the Technical Committee shall consist of the Planning and Zoning 
Administrators from the eight member counties and one representative appointed by each 
of those township and municipalities that have adopted the Mississippi Headwaters 
Comprehensive Plan standards. 

 
 b.    The Technical Committee shall develop a technical review process for variances, plat 

review and conditional use permits. 
 

 c.    The Technical Committee operates as both a committee and through subcommittees.  
When a planning or zoning proposal (subdivision, conditional use, variance, etc.) is 
submitted within the Headwaters corridor, a subcommittee comprised of Technical 
Committee members appointed by the Technical Committee chair will meet on site to 
view and prepare a staff field report for the MHB meetings and public hearings regarding 
the topic. 

 
 
3.  Meetings:      

 a.      The Technical Committee shall meet quarterly each year or as deemed necessary by 
the Board. 
 
b.      Meeting topics should consist of pertinent information in the areas of: Land Use 
Regulation, Land Management (forest practices, agriculture, private lands), Recreational 
Systems Planning, River Watch, Heritage Awards, and Land Conservation and other 
subjects as requested by the Board.  At least one meeting per year may be a joint meeting 
with the Advisory Committee and Mississippi Headwaters Board.    

 
 
Article VII - COMPENSATION 
 
1. Mississippi Headwaters Board 
 

Commented [TT6]: Delete this point 



Mississippi Headwaters Board By-Laws  
Dec. 15th, 2006 
Page 5 
 

 
 
 
As Amended at MHB meetings 
3/19/93, 12/16/94, 3/17/95, 2/21/97, 2/16/01, 6/18/04, 3/18/05, 12/15/06, 2/25/19 
 
 

 a. Members of the Mississippi Headwaters Board will receive a $50 per diem for attending 
meetings of the Board.  Members may receive a $100 per diem for attending all day meetings such 
as legislative meetings in St. Paul, or other all day meetings at the discretion of the Board.   The 
per diem may also be paid if Board members represent the MHB at other meetings, including 
legislative hearings.  This per diem shall be subject to Social Security and other taxes and shall be 
reported to the Internal Revenue Service. 

 
 b. Members of the Mississippi Headwaters Board will be compensated for expenses incurred 

in attending meetings, such as mileage and meals, subject to IRS regulations.  
 
2. Mississippi Headwaters Advisory Committee 
 
 a. Members of the Advisory Committee, appointed by the counties, will receive a $35 per 

diem for attending quarterly meetings of the committee and any meetings as directed by the 
Board. This per diem will not be paid to members attending as part of their professional duties. 
Per diem or other expenses for members appointed by Townships or Municipalities shall be the 
responsibility of the appointing entity or the member. 

 
 b. Members will be compensated for expenses incurred in attending meetings as directed by 

the Board, such as mileage and meals, subject to IRS regulations.  This compensation will not be 
paid to members attending as part of their professional duties. 

 
 
Article  VIII - BUDGET 
 
1. The fiscal year of the Mississippi Headwaters Board runs from July 1 to June 30, consistent with 

the fiscal year of the state of Minnesota. 
 
2. All expenses incurred by the Mississippi Headwaters Board must be listed, itemized and 

distributed to commissioners in advance of the monthly meeting. 
 
3. The operations of the Mississippi Headwaters Board are managed by the Cass County Auditor's 

Office and are subject to audit by the State of Minnesota.   
 
 
 
Article IX - MEETINGS 
 
1. The Mississippi Headwaters Board shall meet on the third Friday of each month. 
 

Commented [TT7]: The fiscal responsibility is hosted by 
Crowwig county 

Commented [TT8]: Change to be more general???? 



Mississippi Headwaters Board By-Laws  
Dec. 15th, 2006 
Page 6 
 

 
 
 
As Amended at MHB meetings 
3/19/93, 12/16/94, 3/17/95, 2/21/97, 2/16/01, 6/18/04, 3/18/05, 12/15/06, 2/25/19 
 
 

2. The Advisory Committee of the Mississippi Headwaters Board shall meet quarterly or as required 
by the board. Meeting topics should consist of pertinent information in the areas of: Land Use 
Regulation, Land Management (forest practices, agriculture, private lands), Recreational Systems 
Planning, River Watch, Heritage Awards, and Land Conservation and other subjects as requested 
by the board.  At least one meeting per year may be a joint meeting with the Advisory Committee 
and the Mississippi Headwaters Board.   

 
3. A quorum of the board shall consist of a majority of the members. 
 
4. A vote of the board must be approved by a majority of the members present. A vote of the 

Advisory Committee must be approved by a majority of the members present. 
 
5. Notice of meetings shall be mailed before the meeting date, as required by the board.    
 
6. An annual schedule of meetings shall be published in January. 
 
 
Article X  - MEMBERSHIP COMPLIANCE  
 
1. The Mississippi Headwaters Board shall consist of eight members representing each of the 

member counties.  In the event any of the counties shall fail to approve and comply with the 
provisions of the joint powers agreement and Minnesota Statutes 103F.361-.377, that portion of 
the Mississippi River and related shore land areas within areas subject to the plan lying within 
such county shall be designated under Minnesota Statutes, Section 104.35, Subdivision 4, and 
shall be managed in accordance with the Mississippi Headwaters Ordinance and management 
plan as incorporated into Minnesota Statues.  The membership of the board shall then consist of 
the remaining counties. 

 
 
Article XI  - CERTIFICATION      
 
1. These By-Laws may be amended by majority vote of the Mississippi Headwaters Board.  

 
2. These By-laws were adopted by the Mississippi Headwaters Board on March 18th, 2005  

Commented [TT9]: Committees don’t vote. 

Commented [TT10]: Updated in 2019 for board rotation 



ea
te MHHCP https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html

Ent      MHB

Ent                         
Project Lead #

h
e 

1 15

C M 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
hi
s TASK ASSIGNED

TO
PROGRESS START END T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S

ell 
B Phase 1 Title

ell 
B Technical Committee Meeting Name 100% 1/22/24 1/22/24

o
w Write and submit LSHOC proposal 0% 5/24/24 5/24/24

MHHCP update to MHB Board 0% 6/22/24 6/22/24

Council Proposals Heard by LSOHC 0% 8/30/24 8/30/24

LSOHC Council meeting allocation approved. 0% 10/5/24 10/5/24

Task 2 0% 10/7/24 10/12/24

Task 3 10/12/24 10/15/24

Task 4 10/12/24 10/14/24

Task 5 10/12/24 10/15/24

Sam    Phase 3 Title

Task 1

Task 2

Task 3

Task 4

Task 5

Sam    Phase 4 Title

Task 1 date date

Task 2 date date

Task 3 date date

Task 4 date date

Task 5 date date

This is an empty row
hi
s Insert new rows ABOVE this one

May 6, 2024 May 13, 2024 May 20, 2024 May 27, 2024 Jun 3, 2024Apr 22, 2024 Apr 29, 2024

11

Project Start:
Thu, 4/18/2024

Display Week:

https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html?utm_source=ms&utm_medium=file&utm_campaign=office&utm_content=url


Page 2 of 6

Cr
ea MN Traditions AIS Social Media
Ent      MHB

https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html

Ent                         
Project Lead

Th
e 

4

Ce 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
Th
is TASK ASSIGNED

TO
PROGRESS START END M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S

Ce
ll Phase 1 Title

Finalize Funding 100% 4/15/24 4/15/24

Run social media program 0% 4/30/24 10/31/24

solicit MN Trad funding 0% 10/1/23 12/31/23

Summary report 
produced and 

0% 12/21/23 12/21/23

This is an empty row
Th
is Insert new rows ABOVE this one

May 27, 2024 Jun 3, 2024 Jun 10, 2024 Jun 17, 2024 Jun 24, 2024May 13, 2024 May 20, 2024

Project Start:
Thu, 4/18/2024

Display Week:
May 6, 2024

https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html?utm_source=ms&utm_medium=file&utm_campaign=office&utm_content=url


Page 3 of 6

Cr
ea Signage Project
Ent      MHB

https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html

Ent                         Project Lead
Th
e 

1

Ce 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Th
is TASK ASSIGNED

TO
PROGRESS START END M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S

Ce
ll 

Visit Grand Rapids Event set up meeting 100% 2/7/24 2/7/24

     Install last year's signs (3) 0% 6/16/24 8/16/24

Paddle Your Glass Off event 0% 6/15/24 6/15/24

Paddle stretches (4) 0% 7/1/24 8/31/24

Miss. River Water Museum Excursion 0% 7/27/24 7/27/24

Paddle Your Stress Away 0% 9/18/24 9/18/24

Partner review of signs 0% 10/1/24 11/30/24

Fabricate signage 0% 10/15/24 11/15/24

Update MHB signage website 0% 12/1/24 12/30/24

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

Phase 4 Title

Sam    Task 1 date date

Task 2 date date

Task 3 date date

Task 4 date date

Task 5 date date

Thi     
Insert new rows ABOVE this one

Th
is 

May 6, 2024 May 13, 2024 May 20, 2024 May 27, 2024 Jun 3, 2024Apr 22, 2024 Apr 29, 2024

Project Start: Thu, 4/18/2024

Display Week:
Apr 15, 2024

https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html?utm_source=ms&utm_medium=file&utm_campaign=office&utm_content=url


Page 4 of 6

Cr
ea High Schools
Ent      MHB

https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html

Ent                         Project Lead
Th
e 

1

Ce 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Th
is TASK ASSIGNED

TO
PROGRESS START END M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S

Ce
ll 
R
o visit Seven high schools classes 100% 1/1/24 5/30/24

Tabulate surveys and present to board 0% 5/24/24 5/24/24

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

Sam    Phase 4 Title

Task 1 date date

Task 2 date date

Task 3 date date

Task 4 date date

Task 5 date date

This is an empty row
Th
is Insert new rows ABOVE this one

Apr 22, 2024 Apr 29, 2024

Project Start: Thu, 4/18/2024

Display Week:
Apr 15, 2024 May 6, 2024 May 13, 2024 May 20, 2024 May 27, 2024 Jun 3, 2024

https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html?utm_source=ms&utm_medium=file&utm_campaign=office&utm_content=url


SIMPLE GANTT CHART by Vertex42.com
https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html

About This Template
This template provides a simple way to create a Gantt chart to help visualize and track your project. Simply 
enter your tasks and start and end dates - no formulas required. The bars in the Gantt chart represent the 
duration of the task and are displayed using conditional formatting. Insert new tasks by inserting new 
rows.

Guide for Screen Readers
There are 2 worksheets in this workbook. 

TimeSheet
About

The instructions for each worksheet are in the A column starting in cell A1 of each worksheet. They are 
written with hidden text. Each step guides you through the information in that row. Each subsequent step 
continues in cell A2, A3, and so on, unless otherwise explicitly directed. For example, instruction text might 
say "continue to cell A6" for the next step. 

This hidden text will not print.

To remove these instructions from the worksheet, simply delete column A.

Additional Help
Click on the link below to visit vertex42.com and learn more about how to use this template, such as how 
to calculate days and work days, create task dependencies, change the colors of the bars, add a scroll bar 
to make it easier to change the display week, extend the date range displayed in the chart, etc.

How to Use the Simple Gantt Chart

More Project Management Templates
Visit Vertex42.com to download other project management templates, including different types of project 
schedules, Gantt charts, tasks lists, etc.

Project Management Templates

About Vertex42
Vertex42.com provides over 300 professionally designed spreadsheet templates for business, home, and 
education - most of which are free to download. Their collection includes a variety of calendars, planners, 
and schedules as well as personal finance spreadsheets for budgeting, debt reduction, and loan 
amortization.

https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html?utm_source=ms&utm_medium=file&utm_campaign=office&utm_content=text
https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html?utm_source=ms&utm_medium=file&utm_campaign=office&utm_content=url
https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html?utm_source=ms&utm_medium=file&utm_campaign=office&utm_content=help
https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/excel-project-management.html?utm_source=ms&utm_medium=file&utm_campaign=office&utm_content=text
https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html?utm_source=ms&utm_medium=file&utm_campaign=office&utm_content=logo


Businesses will find invoices, time sheets, inventory trackers, financial statements, and project planning 
templates. Teachers and students will find resources such as class schedules, grade books, and attendance 
sheets. Organize your family life with meal planners, checklists, and exercise logs. Each template is 
thoroughly researched, refined, and improved over time through feedback from thousands of users.



Executive Director Report 
 March - April 2024 

 
Personnel, Budget, Administration, Information & Education, Correspondence 
 

1. Reviewed monthly budget. 
2. Prepared monthly agenda packet. 
3. Sent in monthly expense report. 
4. Sent press release to newspapers. 
5. Reviewed monthly variances as they are brought forward by counties. 
6. Sent out AIS invoices to counties and SWCD’s for MN Traditions AIS campaign. 
7. Developed contract with Fishing the Wildside for social media campaign. 

 
Meetings & Networking 
 
3/18-  Met with NW DNR Regional Management Team in Bemidji and gave a brief powerpoint 
about what was covered at the MHB biennial conference.   
3/19- Was invited by Maren Butenhoff to be a presenter at Sustainability fest under the natural 
resources section.  This is an event developed by U of MN Extension and Regional Sustainable 
Development Partnership with a focus on agriculture and food systems, clean energy, natural 
resources and resilient communities. 
3/19- Attended phone meeting with Tom Glass (Western Alliance Group), Bill & Jens Heig 
(Bowen Lodge)  to discuss strategy to connect with Smith and Klobuchar to get them involved 
with HR 1657 and write a companion bill. 
3/20- Sent request letter to Amy Klobuchar’s and Tina Smith’s staff requesting a process in the 
US Senate for passage of Bill similar or identical to HR 1657 which authorizes a land exchange 
between the Chippewa National Forest and Bowen Lodge. 
3/21- Attended and presented at the DNR AIS Public Engagement meeting on Microsoft Teams.  
Sixty-seven people attended and I provided the same ppt. that I gave at the biennial conference 
last year.  Lots of good questions and our program received praise from the DNR information 
officer.  
3/27- Provided comments on the Mill Park Improvement Plan. 
4/1-  Met with NE DNR Regional Management Team in Grand Rapids and gave a brief 
powerpoint about what was covered at the MHB biennial conference.   
4/5- Met with Lewis Kellin and Cohasset city administrator Max Peters to discuss and plan a 
Paddle & Pint resourcetainment event.   
4/8- Met via Zoom with John Bennet and Brigid Tuck to discuss RSDP event and how they can 
help with the survey and analysis.  We discussed developing a survey that takes into account 
the direct and indirect economic impact as well as a visitor profile. 
4/11- Attended Camp Ripley Sentinel landscape meeting. 
4/11- Attended Pequot Lakes High School and talked with two Minnesota Wildlife classes. 
4/11- HR Green got accepted to present the Whiskey Creek project at the Water Resources 
Conference in October 2024.  I was asked to present as well. 



4/12- Held Zoom meeting with city of Cohasset and Lewis Kellin to plan Paddle & Pint 
resourcetainment event. 
4/15- Held meeting with MHHCP Partners to discuss ML25 proposal.  We discussed funding for 
each agency.  The proposal will come in around $10 million to LSOHC. 
4/18-  Attended meeting with Camp Ripley staff to answer survey about PFAS and the study on 
the Camp Ripley base.  I want to receive quarterly emails about this study so I can see if the 
results on the area of interest will affect the Miss. river. 
 
 


	1 4.26.24 agenda
	April 26, 2024

	3 24-3.22 minutes
	4 sfy2024 monthly budget sheet
	Sheet1

	5 MHB March DETAIL REVISED
	6 4.2.24 Press release
	7 IMG_6115
	9  Att P&Z
	10 Hubbard Gee Variance
	10 Hubbard Gee Variance
	5-V-24 Gee variance app
	5-V-24 Gee variance app 2023 aerial imagery
	5-V-24 Gee variance app 2023 photos of former GC space within garage
	5-V-24 Gee variance app staff rpt
	5-V-24 Gee decision letter

	5-V-24 Gee variance app 03252024 draft BOA mtg minutes

	11 Mississippi Headwaters Board Packet - Reiner
	12 Morrison Burns
	Burns Powerpoint
	-Morrison County-�Board of Adjustment
	Agenda
	Burns
	Ordinance Reference
	Ordinance Reference
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Staff Report
	Staff Report
	Staff Report
	Staff Report
	Notice and Correspondence
	Finding of Fact & Decision Questions

	Burns Findings

	13 Att action-discussion
	14 Resolution 2024-02 CW policies and procedures
	RESOLUTION

	15 RSDP grant submitted
	Proposal Summary
	RSDP proposal budget
	Sheet1


	16 2024 BYLAWS draft
	BY-LAWS

	17 Program Gantt
	MHHCP
	MN Traditions AIS
	Signage-Resourcetainment
	High Schools
	About

	24-4.26 Executive Staff Report



